M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 27, 2001
9:04 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 26, Side A
SFC 01 # 26, Side B
SFC 01 # 27, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Dave Donl ey convened the nmeeting at approxinmately 9:04 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man
Senator Loren Lenan

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Jerry Ward

Al so Attending: Nl CO BUS, Admnistrative Services Mnager,
Di vision of Support Services, Departnent of MIlitary and Veterans
Affairs and Departnent of Natural Resources; KAREN REHFELD,
Director, Education Support Services, Departnent of Education and
Early  Devel opnent; KEN Bl SCHOFF, Di rector, Division of
Adm nistrative Services, Departnent of Public Safety; DEVON
M TCHELL, Debt Manager, Treasury Division, and Executive D rector,
Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, Departnment of Revenue; KATHRYN
DAUGHHETEE, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Law, REMOND HENDERSON, Director, Division of
Adm ni strative Services, Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce

Devel opnent ; PAUL  GROSSI, Director, Division of Wor ker s’
Conmpensation, Departnment of Labor and W rkforce Devel opnent;
BARBARA RI TCHI E, Deputy Attorney GCeneral, G vil Di vi si on,

Departnment of Law, KURT PARKAN, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities; JANET CLARKE, Director,
Division of Admnistrative Services, Departnent of Health and
Social Services; BOB LABBE, Director, Dvision of Medical
Assi st ance, Departnent of Health and Social Services.

SFC- 01 (1) 02/ 27/ 01



SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 73- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS/ AMEND APPROP.
SB 74- FAST TRACK SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS

The Committee heard details regarding budget requests from the
Departnent of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs, Departnent of
Educati on and Early Devel opnent, Departnment of Natural Resources,
Departnent of Public Safety, Departnent of Revenue, Departnent of
Law, Departnent of Labor and Wbrkforce Devel opnent, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities and Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services. The bills were held in Conmittee.

HB 117- SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRI ATI ONS: FAST TRACK
This bill was schedul ed but not heard.

#SB73
#SB74

SENATE BILL NO. 73

"An Act nmaking supplenental appropriations and naking and
anendi ng ot her appropriations; and providing for an effective
date. ™

SENATE BI LL NO. 74
"An Act nmaking supplenental and other appropriations; and
providing for an effective date."

Co- Chai r Donl ey announced that no anendnments woul d be taken at this
neeting, but the Commttee woul d begin consideration of amendnents
to the fast-track suppl enental budget the next day.

The following itenms are included in SB 74 in the sections
i ndi cat ed.

Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs

Section 5

Department of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs

Di saster Relief Fund Budget Request Unit (BRU)

Core services funding not provided in base budget and 50.0
increnent for satellite imaging to assist in search and rescue
oper ati ons

$680, 000 general funds

SFC- 01 (2) 02/ 27/ 01



Nl CO BUS, Adm nistrative Services Manager, D vision of Support
Services, Departnment of Mlitary and Veterans Affairs and
Department of Natural Resources, testified that the past several
years the Division of Energency Services has been funded fromthe
di saster relief fund and that fund source is al nost depleted.

Co-Chair Donley noted this supplenmental request is an on-going
operating cost.

M. Bus affirnmed and added that suppl enmental budget requests for
this division have been submtted for the past several years as
part of the fundi ng process.

Co-Chair Donley asked if this is a replenishment of the disaster
relief fund.

M. Bus explained that the appropriation would be deposited into
the disaster relief fund then drawn from that account to pay for
operating staff and i magi ng expenses.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know if this request includes funding for
staff in the upcom ng fiscal year

M. Bus affirmed and explained that this is the method the
departnment has been directed to take by the legislature. He
commented that the departnent would prefer to include this in the
regul ar operating budget.

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent

Section 6(a)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Foundati on BRU

Use balance in foundation program resulting from Cctober
student count to offset shortfall in pupil transportation.
-$1, 913, 100 general funds

KAREN REHFELD, Director, Education Support Services, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent, stated this is an adjustnent to
t he actual school count and the ampbunt school districts spent and
received in federal inpact aid.

Section 6(b)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Pupi | Transportation BRU

Current estimate  of projected shortfall for pupi
transportation

$2,111, 400 general funds

SFC- 01 (3) 02/ 27/ 01



Ms. Rehfeld testified the departnent underestimated the anount
necessary to reinburse school districts for pupil transportation
costs already incurred in the current fiscal year

Co-Chair Donley asked if the $1.913 million is a "noving target"
and if the anmount coul d change.

Ms. Rehfeld replied this is the anount estinmated at this date. She
noted that after the March 1 deadline for receipt of federal inpact
aid, a nore accurate figure would be avail abl e.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked when the updated figure would be known.

Ms. Rehfeld answered the cal cul ati ons should be conpleted within a
coupl e of weeks after the March 1 deadl i ne.

Section 6(c)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment
Child Care Assistance and Licensing BRU

I ncrease federal Child Care Devel opnent Funds
$5, 500, 000 federal funds

Ms. Rehfeld informed this request is for the Division of Early
Devel opnent. She noted that these funds were incorrectly accounted
as excess inter-agency receipt authorization and added that there
is an increase in the anmount of federal funds available for the
Chil d Care Devel opnent Funds.

Co- Chair Donl ey again questioned the reason this itemis included
in the supplenental since the funds would not be expended in the
current fiscal year

Ms. Rehfeld responded that of the $5.5 mllion, approxinmtely $3.4
mllion relates to the fund source. She explained that this anount
is reflected as inter-agency receipts because up until this year,
the Departnent of Health and Social Services was the | ead agency
for the Child Care Devel opnent Fund and the federal authorization
is included in that agency's budget. She continued that when the
budget transfer of these funds was nade in the FY 01 operating
budget to the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent, not
enough transfer authorization was given to allow for carry-forwards
fromthe previous fiscal year as well as grant receipts.

Ms. Rehfeld also noted an additional $2 mllion federal funds

avai lable to the departnent for |ive-change efforts and outreach
activities that could be utilized in the current fiscal year.

SFC- 01 (4) 02/ 27/ 01



Senator Austerman referred to Section 6(b) and asked if the $2.1
mllion is available as a result of the pupil transportation
shortfall of FY 01.

Ms. Rehfeld affirned.

Senator Austerman wanted to know if this request is to fund
contracts currently in effect.

Ms. Rehfeld affirned.

Section 6(d)

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Speci al and Suppl enental Services BRU

Increase federal Title | and Special Education funds.
$4, 700, 000 federal funds

Ms. Rehfeld spoke to the significant increases in federal funds
avail able for prograns relating to Title One and speci al educati on.
She pointed out these funds are in the formof grants to the school
districts for the current year.

Co-Chair Donley wanted to know how t he departnent determ nes which
school districts receive the grants.

Ms. Rehfeld spoke to the specific allocations within the federal
grants programthat are based on the nunber of students living in
poverty and the nunber of students receiving certain public
services. She stated there is a fornula used to nmake determ nati ons
for the allocation of the funds.

Co- Chair Donley asked if the departnent has any discretion or if
the guidelines are strictly set.

V5. Rehfeld answered that the fornulation guidelines are
established by federal regul ations or statute and are
pr edet er m ned.

Co-Chair Donley requested a list of the grant recipients.

Departnent of Natural Resources

Section 7

Department of Natural Resources

Fire Suppression BRU

Fund fixes fire suppression costs that were not in base budget
and variable costs incurred through fall fire season.

$4, 768, 400 general funds

SFC- 01 (5) 02/ 27/ 01



$5, 981, 700 federal funds

Nl CO BUS stated this is a "routine request” and expl ai ned that each
year, the legislature funds approximately $3 nmillion to cover
estimated costs for the start of the fire season. After the sunmer
fire season is conpleted, he said, the departnent reports to the
| egi sl ature the actual expenditures fromJuly through Decenber and
requests supplenental funds for anticipated expenditures relating
to fire activity in May and June.

M. Bus pointed out that the anmount of federal funds is high
because the departnent was able to send nany Al askan firefighters
to other states to assist in their fires. He stated this helped to
of fset some of the in-state fixed costs.

Senator W/ ken asked for an explanation of the declaration of a
di saster energency because of insufficient noney. He said he
guestioned the timng.

M. Bus explained that each year the state spends an average of $12
mllion on fire suppression although the | egislature only approves
approximately $3 mllion in the original operating budget. Wen the
funds are depleted, he continued, the departnent nust declare a
di saster in order to utilize additional funds to fight the fires.

Senator Wl ken asked if this is an annual event.

M. Bus responded that it is actually a nonthly event as a result
of recent legislation that requires the departnment to update the
di saster declaration every 30 days.

Senator W/l ken asked if a disaster declaration is necessary to
access noney unavail able in the normal budget process.

M. Bus replied that the statute authorizes the departnent to
access any avail able funds once the disaster has been declared. He
noted the decl aration becones the nethod that allows the departnent
to continue fighting fires.

Senat or W1l ken requested a copy of a disaster declaration.

Senat or Lenman asked how the departnment accounts for the cost of
fires fought on federal |and.

M. Bus detailed the state is divided into two zones, northern and
southern. He stated that the state fights all fires in the southern
zone and determ nes actual |and ownership afterwards. If the fire
occurred on federal |land, he inforned, the state bills the federal

SFC- 01 (6) 02/ 27/ 01



governnent for reinbursenent of the firefighting efforts. He al so
noted that if the fire was | ocated on Native-owned | and, the United
States Bureau of Indian Affairs rei nburses the state.

Senator Leman asked if the current budget shortfall would be
adjusted to account for costs that the federal governnent would
rei nburse.

M. Bus assured that the federal funds would be reinbursed and that
nost of the costs were incurred by fighting fires in the Lower 48.

Senator Austerman asked if the total firefighting budget is $12
mllion annually and how nuch of the total amount is federal funds.

M. Bus detailed the initial appropriation of $3.1 mllion genera
funds and $5 mllion federal funds at the start of the fiscal year.

Senat or Austernman asked the total expenditure at the end of the
fiscal year.

M. Bus answered that the average federal reinbursenent is
approximately $5.5 mllion for firefighting activities.

Senat or Austernan cal cul ated the annual cost to be between $17 and
$18 mllion.

Senator Wl ken created a tineline and recalled that $7 mllion was
appropriated in the FY 00 supplenental budget to pay the cost of
fighting fires in that fiscal year. He renenbered that $3 million
was funded in the FY Ol regul ar operating budget. On Septenber 22,
2001, he noted, a disaster energency was declared, which allowed
access to $10, 750,000 to cover expenditures for the remai nder of FY
01. He wanted to know how the cost to fight fires for the remnai nder
of the fiscal year was known in Septenber

M. Bus replied that the departnment is required by statutes to
follow a financial plan, that fixed costs are already identified
and that the remaining fire activity for the calendar year is
estimated. He detailed the process of calculating the federal and
state obligations, the payroll, vendor expenses, etc., to determ ne
a financial plan. He pointed out that by Decenber, fires are not
expected to occur before April or May of the follow ng year.

Senator Wlken clarified that the supplenental request is not for
the cost of the actual firefighting expenses, but rather an
estimate of those costs. He understood the supplenental is to
reflect the actual cost of firefighting.

SFC- 01 (7) 02/ 27/ 01



M. Bus replied that as of January 19, 2001, the departnent has
expended $5,450,000 and that fixed costs are known for the
remai nder of the fiscal year. He stated that spending adjustnents
woul d be nmade. He detailed the process of ratification conducted at
the end of the fiscal year and referred to Section 19(b) of the
bill.

Section 13

Departnent of Natural Resources

Recorders O fice BRU

| ncreased costs of Palner and Fairbanks Recorder's Ofice
| eases, which expire this fiscal year

$100, 000 general funds

M. Bus inforned that the Palnmer Recorder's Ofice |ease has
expired. He stated that the Departnent of Adm nistration agreed
that the office should be conbined with another |ocated in Pal ner
and that this has been done. He listed the initial cost of $26, 000
for "build outs" and $24,000 for noving costs including utility
connecti ons.

M. Bus added there is a simlar situation in the Fairbanks office
with the lease expiring in May. He estimated $50,000 would be
expended in that effort.

Section 19(b)

Departnent of Natural Resources
Fire Suppression BRU

AR 37313-00 Fire Suppression
$4, 299, 492. 91 general funds

M. Bus stated this is the final accounting for FY 00 and reflects
t he actual anmount expended in May and June of 2000.

Senator Austerman returned to Section 13 and wanted to know if the
Departnent of Adm nistration handl es | eases for all agencies and if
that departnent would submt a supplenental request for the cost of
increased leases in facilities across the state.

M. Bus responded that normally when Departnent of Adm nistration
renews a lease, it incurs the cost. In this event, he noted, the
Department of Natural Resources requested a negotiated |ease
because new wal | s, electrical and other inprovenents were required
and that the Department of Natural Resources is responsible for
t hese expenses. He explained this is because the costs could not be
calculated into the square footage rate. He pointed out that
because of the negotiated |ease, the cost per square foot was
reduced from $1.25 to $1.08.

SFC- 01 (8) 02/ 27/ 01



Section 9(a) and (b)

Vari ous Agenci es

I ncreased Fuel Costs BRU

Increased fuel <costs in various agencies for heating,
vehicles, aircraft, ferries, etc. due to higher oil and gas
prices.

$2, 123,000 general funds

$ 457,600 International Airports Revenue Funds

M. Bus testified this itemis to cover increased fuel costs for
the Division of Parks. He listed that $16,000 is needed for
facilities, and $37,000 for park vehicles. He noted the park
rangers is the only departnent program which additional funds are
requested to cover the increases in fuel costs.

Department of Public Safety

Section 9(a) and (b)

Vari ous Agenci es

I ncreased Fuel Costs BRU

Increased fuel <costs in various agencies for heating,
vehicles, aircraft, ferries, etc. due to higher oil and gas
pri ces.

$2, 123, 000 general funds

$ 457,600 International Airports Revenue Funds

KEN BI SCHOFF, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Public Safety, spoke of the increased operating costs
for the Division of Fish and Wldlife. He added that fuel costs
have also increased for aircraft operated by the Alaska State
Tr oopers.

Section 14(a)and(b)

Departnent of Public Safety

Fire Service Training BRU

Techni cal fund source change from statutory desi gnated program
receipts to receipt supported services to fully fund a
Fai rbanks Fire Service Training positions.

$0.0

M. Bischoff explained the advantage of changi ng the funding source
fromfees charged for courses. He characterized the situation as "a
chi cken and an egg" because fees could not be collected until the
program is established and the program needs funds to becone
established. He detailed the request is to utilize revenue from
buil ding plan review fees to start the programduring this fiscal
year.

SFC- 01 (9) 02/ 27/ 01



Section 18

Vari ous Agenci es

M scel | aneous Cl ai ns and Stal e-dated Warrants BRU
St al e-dated warrants and m scel | aneous cl ai ns.

$ 85,500 general funds

$141, 100 federal funds

M. Bischoff listed the Departnent of Public Safety portion of this
itemas $11,000 for billings received after the two-year stale date
period for which the departnent has authorization to pay the
cl ai nms.

Section 14(c)

Department of Public Safety

Capital BRU

Change scope of prior Crinme Lab capital appropriation to allow
currently needed work.

$0.0

M. Bischoff explained this request it for authorization to allow
an existing appropriation to be used as matching funds to receive
$1, 250, 000 federal funds.

Co-Chair Donley asked if this is a | anguage change to the original
budget to obtain additional federal funds.

M. Bischoff affirnmed and explained it would reduce the anmount of
state funds required to operate the crine |ab

[ Pause on the record.]

Co-Chair Donley requested the witness further explain this to staff
at a later tine.

Senator Geen asked if the change of programreceipts requested in
Section 14(b) would apply in future years.

M. Bischoff replied this is a one-tine request to receive the
funds in the current fiscal year

Depart nent of Revenue

Section 15

Departnent of Revenue

Muni ci pal Bond Bank Authority BRU

Fundi ng for costs of additional municipal bond sales.
$58, 000 Muni Bond Bank Recei pts

SFC-01 (10) 02/ 27/ 01



DEVON M TCHELL, Debt WManager, Treasury Division, and Executive
Director, Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, Departnent of Revenue,
detailed the increased activity in the current year. He inforned
that the bond bank budget is "demand driven" and is based on the
nunber of comunities that request funding for |oans. He noted the
exi sting all ocation of $450,000 has not changed for several years.

Departnent of Law

Section 19(a)(7)

Depart ment of Law

AR 13907-00 AHFC CQut si de Counsel
$340. 83 federal funds

KATHRYN DAUGHHETEE, Director, Division of Adm nistrative Services,
Departnent of Law, explained that this is an old reinbursable
services agreenent (RSA) that the department is unable to collect
the revenue. She stated that the departnment had a contract for
out si de council on behalf of the Al aska Housi ng Fi nance Corporation
(AHFC) dating from FY 97. She explained that the file was cl osed
and di scarded and the departnment was unable to produce a bill for
t he $340.83 for expenditures nade by the departnent. She noted the
total anmount of the contract was $300,000 and that this itenms is
m nor .

Depart ment of Labor and Wor kf orce Devel opnent

Section 11

Depart ment of Labor and Workf orce Devel opnment

Wor kers' Conpensati on/ Second I njury BRU

I ncrease Second Injury Fund authorization for unanticipated
increases in claim sizes and expansi on of payouts resulting
fromrecent court decisions.

$325, 700 Second | njury Fund

REMOND HENDERSON, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Depart ment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment, testified that the
departnent is required to nake sone |unp-sone paynents and needs
aut hori zation fromthe | egislature to do so.

Section 19(a)(2)

Departnent of Labor and Wrkforce Devel opnent (for forner
Department of Comrunity and Regi onal Affairs)

C&RA/ 1 Stop BRU

AR 52901-99 1-Stop/AJCN Staff Sup

$249. 68 general funds

SFC-01 (11) 02/ 27/ 01



M. Henderson stated this item was "inherited" from the forner
Departnment of Conmunity and Regional Affairs. He explained it as a
correction of an over-receipt and that the Departnment of Labor and
Wor kf or ce Devel opnent needs aut horization to receive the additiona
federal funds.

Department of Law (cont.)

Section 10

Judgnents and d ai ns
Law BRU

Judgnents and cl ai ns.
$478, 700 general funds

Co-Chair Donley stated that nenbers could pose questions on
particul ar itens.

I[tem #1. Stephen H WIlianms Planned Parenthood of
Al aska, et al. vs. State of Al aska

Description: Unconstitutionality of statute limting
partial birth abortions-Superior Court Award.

Dat e: 4/15/98

Awar d: $81, 588. 00 plus $27,507.45 interest as of 2/2/01,
totaling $109, 095. 45

BARBARA RITCH E, Deputy Attorney GCeneral, Givil Di vi sion

Departnent of Law, testified that the Al aska superior court awarded
the plaintiff attorney fees. She noted that the Crimnal Division
of the departnent handled this case for the state. She stated this
case related to the constitutionality of a partial-birth abortion
statute passed by the legislature. She infornmed that the court
found the statute violates the Alaska Right to Privacy and Right to
Due Process and the state appealed this ruling to the Al aska
Suprene Court. The appeal was dism ssed, she said, after the United
States Suprene Court issued a decision in a case involving al nost
identical statutes in the State of Nebraska, which found the
Nebraska statute unconstitutional under the federal constitution.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the fees followed the standard gui delines
provi ded under Civil Rule 82, or if they are higher.

Ms. Ritchie believed that because this case involved public
interest litigants, the award qualified for reinbursement of ful
reasonabl e attorneys fees.

Co- Chair Donl ey asked for conparison of the anmount that woul d have

been awarded under Cvil Rule 82 and the anmpbunt awarded in this
case and other public interest litigant cases.

SFC-01 (12) 02/ 27/ 01



Ms. Ritchie stated she would provide details to the Cormittee.

Senator W/ ken asked why the interest is so high in this first case
conpared to the other judgnents in the budget request.

Ms. Rtchie explained the interest rate is calculated fromthe date
of the award in April 1998. She noted the judgnent is not presented
to the legislature until the case is conplete and neanwhile,
interest is accruing on the original judgnent.

Senat or Leman renenbered attorney rates of $275 per hour paid for
judgnents the previous fiscal year, which he thought was too high.

Ms. Ritchie responded that the hourly rate of appellate work is
$195 per hour, which is what was awarded in this case. She stated
the rate for work done in the superior court ranges from $110 and
$180 per hour. She said the reason the rates vary is because
Pl anned Parent hood had nore than one attorney working on the case.
She assured these rates are within the normal range in Al aska.

Co-Chair Donley asked if any of the remaining cases involve
settlenents for fees other than attorney fees.

Item #7: Overly vs. State of Al aska

Description: Settlement in whistleblowr case

Date: 9/12/00

Awar d: $55,000, with no interest accrued as of 2/2/01

Ms. Ritchie explained this is a recommended settlenent in an
enpl oynment case. She noted that part of the agreenment provides that
no interest is paid. She detailed the case brought by Lieutenant
Colonial Overly of the Alaska National Guard, who allegedly
suffered discrimnation and retaliation after whistle blow ng. She
explained that this case is "fact specific" and that it depends
upon "who said what to whonm' in that one party consi dered actions
to be insubordinate while another party did not.

SFC 01 # 26, Side B 09:50 AM

Ms. Ritchie told the Conmttee that nanagenent in this case took
di sciplinary action against the enployee accused of causing the
retaliation, and that this action was revi ewed beforehand by their
attorneys as well as attorneys in Washington D.C.

Ms. Ritchie noted the whistle blowi ng involved all eged m suse of

SFC-01 (13) 02/ 27/ 01



government assets and hiring practices. She informed that this case
was settled and therefore, it remains undeterm ned whether the
charges neet the criteria set for whistle bl ow ng.

Ms. Ritchie relayed that the Inspectors General fromthe mlitary
eval uated the case and concluded the plaintiff had suffered "sone
measure" of retaliation. She spoke of a concern that exposure of
the issue "could be significant. She also noted the plaintiff is
still enployed by the Al aska National Guard and that the state
could get a better settlenent figure in this situation then if the
enpl oyee discharged from the service and filed a claimon those
grounds.

Senat or Hof f man asked what actions the departnment took to correct
the m sconduct of the enpl oyee causing the retaliation.

Ms. Ritchie replied this was a situation where managenent thought
it took appropriate steps with regard to the enpl oyee. She shared
that the Departnment of Law attorney who worked on the case issued a
menorandum stating that further action should not be taken because
of the risk of a |awsuit brought by this enpl oyee.

Co-Chair Donley comented that the advice the Al aska National Quard
received from their attorneys was unacceptable because it would
cost the state $55, 000.

Ms. Ritchie responded that the National GQuard has in-house counci

t hat does not work for the Departnent of Law. She pointed out these
attorneys do not litigate cases, and the Departnent of Law becane
involved with the lawsuit was fil ed.

Co- Chair Donl ey questioned the | egal advice or the actions taken by
the National Guard in this instance.

Ms. Ritchie reiterated there was a sequence of events that occurred
in this situation. She detailed the process of the plaintiff
bringing a conplaint before the Air Force Board and ultimately
deciding to file a lawsuit.

Co-Chair Donl ey requested the Al aska National Guard be avail abl e at
next hearing to explain the case further. He stressed that the
departnments involved in these clains should be addressing the
Comm ttee rather than just the Departnment of Law.

Ms. Ritchie said she woul d make the request. She cautioned that an

executive session could be required since the case is still
pendi ng.

SFC-01 (14) 02/ 27/ 01



Co- Chair Donl ey agreed.

[tem #9: Northern Al aska Environnental Center and Sierra
Club NAEC/Sierra Club vs. State of Al aska

Description: Challenge to the Departnent of Natural
Resources' right of way permtting process for an
electric transm ssion |ine-Superior Court award

Dat e: 10/19/00

Awar d: $57, 250.41, plus $3,187.20 interest as of 2/2/01,
total i ng $60, 437.61

Senat or Hof fman noted that no changes in statutes, regulations or
policy are recommended. He pointed out that the matter is therefore
still open for liability.

Co- Chair Donl ey agreed.

Ms. Ritchie stressed that a whistle blower statute is in place and
that the departnment does not consider this statute to be fl awed.
She cautioned that it is difficult to legislate how to eval uate
peopl e’ s notives.

Co-Chair Donley commented that a factual case could be built that
proves an enployer's action was not taken for inproper notives,
such as retaliation against a whistle blower.

Ms. Ritchie replied that she would further study the matter.

Item #11: Tara Logsdon, Colter and Logdson Bennett vs.
State of Al aska

Description: Mdification of child support in a "swtched
cust ody"

Date: 7/28/ 00 and 8/24/00

Award: $1,103.39, plus $80.88 interest as of 2/2/01,
totaling $1,184. 27

Ms. Ritchie stated this itemrelates to a standard $1, 000 attorney
fees and court costs awarded to a plaintiff who prevails in the
appeal s process.

ltem  #14: Al aska State Enmpl oyees Associ ati on
(ASEA) / AFSCME Local 52 vs. State of Al aska

Description: Wiether certain firefighters are required to
be menbers of the Alaska Air National Guard

Date: 11/17/00

Awar d: $4,813.00, plus $237.36 interest as of 2/2/01,
totaling $5,050.35

SFC-01 (15) 02/ 27/ 01



Co-Chair Donley noted this claimis for a small anount.

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

Section 9(a) and (b)

Vari ous Agenci es

I ncreased Fuel Costs BRU

Increased fuel <costs in various agencies for heating,
vehicles, aircraft, ferries, etc. due to higher oil and gas
pri ces.

$2, 123, 000 general funds

$ 457,600 International Airports Revenue Funds

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities, testified the departnment's portion of this
request ampunts to $800,000 general funds and $457, 600
International A rports Revenue Funds to apply to the three regions.
He stated the funds would cover costs for nmaintenance and
operations of state facilities as well as the Marine H ghway System
(MHS) .

Co- Chair Donley asked if the cost increases have been determ ned
usi ng the actual fuel prices.

M. Parkan answered this has been done. As an exanple, he stated
the departnent estimated a fuel cost of $1.03 per gallon to operate
the MHS. He said that instead, the department paid al nost $1.18 per
gallon for the first six nonths of the fiscal year. He noted that
in the Northern and Central Regions, the fuel costs have been
approxi mately 58-60% hi gher then projected.

Section 17(a)

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities

Central Region Facilities BRU

Retrofit or replace fuel day tanks in Central Region to avoid
Court Plaza-type fuel spills.

$34, 000 general funds

and

Section 17(b)

Department of Transportation and Public Facilities

Northern Region Facilities BRU

Retrofit or replace fuel day tanks in Central Region to avoid
Court Pl aza-type fuel spills.

$236, 000 general funds

M. Parkan explained that after the oil spill in the Court Plaza

Bui |l ding in Juneau, the departnent surveyed the day tank systens in
state-owned facilities in the Northern and Central Regions. He

SFC-01 (16) 02/ 27/ 01



rel ayed that tanks with simlar faulty switches were identified in
several facilities. He said it was determ ned these should be
addressed before another spill occurred. He also noted that there
was another spill in a building in the Northern Regi on. He spoke of
the need for better nonitoring systens on the tank sw tches.

Co-Chair Donley asked if the departnment considered using the 470
Fund to cover the cost of these upgrades.

M. Parkan said it had not.
Co- Chair Donl ey requested this be done.
Senat or Hof f man asked if the survey was done on snaller buildings.

M. Parkan affirmed and listed facilities in Quartz Ceek, Kodi ak,
Dutch Harbor, and Bethel in the Central Region, and Shishmaref,
Saint Mary's and facilities located along the Railbelt in the
Northern Region. He noted that nost of the facilities identified
are located in rural areas.

Section 17(c)

Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities
Northern Region Facilities BRU

Qperating costs for the Harborview Devel opnent Center.
$93, 000 general funds

M. Parkan stated this itemreflects costs incurred in past year,
including fuel increases not included in Section 9. He told of
preparations in converting the facility to separate the hospital
portion fromthe unused state-portion. He detailed the discovery of
asbestos, and necessary roof repairs, an energency generator and a
fire alarmsystemthat were required by the state fire marshal. He
poi nted out t hat the departnent has been "handed the
responsibility" of the Harborview facility and has had to spend
funds from the departnent's naintenance budget to address the
af orenenti oned probl ens.

Senator Ward understood adequate funds were allocated in the
regul ar budget to nake Harborview self-sufficient with the goal of
either closing the state-owned portion of the facility conpletely
or finding a different owner.

M. Parkan agreed and stressed that the intent is to dispose of the
facility with the hospital section operated by the Gty of Val dez.
He descri bed how the origi nal $235, 000 appropriation has been used
for utilities and sone of the repairs.

SFC-01 (17) 02/ 27/ 01



Senator Ward requested a blueprint of the existing facility inits
current layout. He referred to one he saw two years prior and
wanted to know how nmuch of the facility remains unoccupi ed.

M. Parkan replied he would provide a blueprint and gave verba
description of the hex portion of the facility that had been used
by the Departnent of Health and Social Services for devel opnentally
di sabled and the portion used as a hospital, with a corridor
connecting the two. He noted the kitchen and dining roomareas are
no | onger needed.

Senat or Ward questioned why the state continues to spend public
noney for upkeep of an enpty building while other buildings are
under funded.

M. Parkan responded that the department would not disagree with
t hat point.

Co- Chai r Donl ey asked the consequences of not funding this request.

M. Parkan replied the funds would have to be taken from el sewhere
in the departnment's budget.

Co-Chair Donley hoped the departnent would not do that. He
preferred the departnent "give sone warning" to the Legislative
Budget and Audit Comrittee or the Legislative Council if
overspending for a specific function is necessary.

M . Parkan agreed and noted the matter had been di scussed with the
Al aska Representative of the district in which the facility is
| ocat ed.

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Section 8(a)

Department of Health and Social Services

Medi cai d BRU

Medi cai d caseload growmh of 7% and hi gher average cost per
nonth, particularly for hospital and pharmacy costs.

$ 9,124,700 general funds

$50, 642, 700 federal funds

$11, 412,900 Statutory Designated Program Receipts

JANET CLARKE, Director, Dyvision of Admnistrative Services,
Departnent of Health and Social Services, referenced wall charts
prepared to show sone of the factors inpacting the cost of the
Medi caid program She instructed how the programis divided into
four groups: children, adults, disabled and el derly.

SFC-01 (18) 02/ 27/ 01



BOB LABBE, Director, Division of Medical Assistance, Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services, addressed the first group, children,
referring to a chart showing the increase in the nunber of eligible
participants due to expansions in the program He noted it is
expected the growh would | evel out.

Senat or Ward asked about the action that caused the | arge increase
in the cost of that action.

M. Labbe replied the action followed federal |egislation that
created child health insurance program bl ock grants to the states
to increase the eligibility from 130 percent of the poverty |evel
to 200 percent. He noted nore applications were received as a
result of this change that was inplenented in March 1999.

Senat or Ward asked the actual cost of this increase.

Ms. Cl arke responded that she would have to cal cul ate the exact
anount. She assured that state receives an enhanced natch rate of
72 percent in federal funding to address the increased
partici pation.

Senator Ward estinmated the amount to be in the mllions of dollars.
He voi ced concern about the inpact on the state's budget once the
federal funds are discontinued. He opined that returning to the 130
percent poverty level qualification is one option.

M . Labbe expl ained that since the state receives federal funding
at the higher match rate because of the percentage of poverty |evel
i ncrease, that |evel could not be reduced. He al so pointed out
that Al aska receives additional federal funds resulting from other
states not expending the block grants allocated to them He did not
anticipate these grants woul d go away.

Senator Ward asked if the nunber of participants increased from
35,000 to 55,000 because of the change to the qualifying poverty
| evel percentage.

M. Labbe replied the annual nunber of children qualifying under
the new criteria is from15,000 to 16,000 nore then woul d have been
covered under the old rules. He noted outreach efforts that are a
part of the new program al so accounts for sone of the increase. He
spoke of marketing this program called Denali KidCare and the
stream i ned application process that makes enrol |l nent easier. He
stated that this process has also resulted in participation of
children who qualified under the previous percentage.

SFC-01 (19) 02/ 27/ 01



Senat or Ward asked the nunber of new participants that woul d have
qualified for the program at the 130 percent poverty |evel
criteria.

M. Labbe answered that about half of the new participants woul d
have qualified under the previous rules.

Co-Chair Kelly asked how the departnment predicted that the growth
rate woul d even out.

M. Labbe recounted a previous expansion to the Medicaid program
i npl enented in the early 1990s when the qualification was raised
from 70 percent of the poverty level to 133 percent. He cited the
increase in participation for the first three years after
i npl enentation after which the growh rate leveled off. He
ascertained this was due to market saturation.

Co-Chair Kelly spoke to earlier legislation that proposed to reduce
the qualification |evel to 130 percent, when it was di scovered that
the level could be reduced no further than 158 percent of the
poverty level. He asked the reason for this.

M. Labbe replied the |level could be reduced to 133 percent for
children up to age six and 100 percent for children six years and
ol der.

Co-Chair Kelly understood poverty levels for Al aska are cal cul ated
with an additional 25 percent of the national average.

M. Labbe affirnmed and noted this was a choi ce nmade through state
statute.

M. Labbe stressed that children are the |east expensive clients
the program serves. He cited $2,000 to $2,500 a year is spent for
the average child versus $13,000 to $15,000 per year spent for a
di sabl ed person.

Senator W1 ken requested additional information about the expected
growh rates. He also wanted to know if there is any indication
that Denali KidCare is replacing other insurance.

M. Labbe replied there is no evidence showing this. He assured
that existing insurance coverage disqualifies a child from the
Denali KidCare. He further explained that a child is not eligible
for the programfor a period of one year after discontinuation of
any insurance. He noted the departnent is already seeing a slow ng
in the growh of the nunber of new participates in this program

SFC-01 (20) 02/ 27/ 01



Senator Leman rem nded how the |l egislature was initially "sold" on
the poverty |level percentage increase. He renenbered that the
| egi slature was warned that not participating in the expansion
woul d appear to the U S. Congress to be a "bad faith effort”. He
asked if the state has actually benefited from the | ower general
fund match requirenent, given the "incredible" increase in
participation.

M. Labbe was unsure and said he would have to research the matter
He remenbered that the match rate increase from 50 percent to 60
percent was part of the arrangenent. He noted that the state saved
approximately $30 nillion on the first year this program was
i npl enent ed.

Senator Lenman requested the information. He stated, "I think I
probably speak for several others-this growh is troubling
especi ally when you | ook at the costs associated with it."

Co-Chair Kelly noted the incone level is higher in Alaska than in
the rest of the country.

M. Labbe agreed and detailed how the federal poverty level is
adjusted for Hawaii and Al aska. He stated that the poverty level is
Al aska is set at 125 percent of that for states in the Lower 48.

Senat or Green shared that she has seen literature nmarketing the
Denali KidCare program at the U S. Post Ofice and other public
government facilities and asked the cost of this outreach effort.
She commented that she had not predicted that this programwoul d be
secondary to any other insurance coverage. She was unable to | ocate
any statenents to show that Denali KidCare was designed to serve
children who have no other insurance. She asked if this were a
federal policy.

M. Labbe spoke to the different levels of eligibility for the
Denal i Ki dCare program based on age and incone in relation to the
poverty level. He stated that a child with insurance and an i ncone
above 150 percent of the poverty level would not qualify, while a
child living below 150 percent would qualify for the Medicaid
program if they already have insurance. Those children with no
i nsurance and living below 150 percent of the poverty level, he
said, would be included in the block grant and the state would
receive a higher match percentage for funds spent for this group.

M . Labbe shared that the original intent was a prem um system or
other form of cost sharing system for those participants |iving
above the 150 percent poverty |level. However, he inforned that the
federal governnment would not allow this nmethod. He pointed out that

SFC-01 (21) 02/ 27/ 01



the regul ar Medi caid program does not consider existing insurance
coverage as a factor in participation

Senat or Green asked about participants in the Medicaid programthat
were transferred to the Denali KidCare programto allow the state
to receive a higher percentage of federal funds.

M . Labbe responded that this was not allowed and that children
eligible for Medicaid could not be placed in the Denali KidCare
program instead. He qualified there are many conplicated rules
governing the programand offered to detail themfurther.

Co-Chair Kelly comented that if the income requirenent were
rai sed, children who had qualified for Medicaid would instead
qualify for Denali KidCare and the state could receive a higher
match rate. He opined that there is nore incentive to serve those
with higher inconmes and a less immediate need then those wth
possibly a greater need. He assured he does not blane the
departnent for this since the federal governnent established these
rul es.

M . Labbe agreed and noted the intent of the federal requirenents
is to prevent states from serving Medicaid eligible participants
under the new program and subsequently collecting federal funds
based on the higher match rate.

Senator Green asserted that sone other states are able to charge
participants for a portion of the cost and asked why this coul d not
be done in Al aska.

M . Labbe answered that because the block grant programis a part
of Medicaid, the Medicaid rules nust be conplied wth.

SFC 01 # 27, Side A 10:37 AM

M . Labbe continued that some states have been able to inplenent a
formof cost sharing using state funds other then Medi caid matching
funds. He pointed out that other states have done extensive
denonstration projects working wth Medicaid that expand
eligibility, and he described these. He qualified that these
projects have to show they are "budget neutral"™ for the federa

governnent in that the federal cost does not increase. He stressed
that he worked personally with representatives of the federa

office to try to devise a nethod for cost sharing and | earned t hat
w t hout federal statutory changes, this was not all owable.

SFC-01 (22) 02/ 27/ 01



M. Labbe then addressed the adult group of Medicaid participants.
He described these participants as parents of famlies who receive
tenporary assistance as well as pregnant wonen. He noted a downward
trend in the nunber of these participants due to the welfare reform
efforts and the subsequent increase in the nunber of people going
off of welfare. He pointed out these participants are eligible to
continue receiving Medicaid benefits for 12 nonths after
di scontinuing welfare if they have enploynent. He stressed that the
decreasing trend would | evel off as welfare reformis concl uded.

M. Labbe next referenced a wall chart indicating the growh trends
of the nunmber of elderly Mdicaid participants. He noted that
al though there are fewer participants in this group, the trend
continues to rise, as there are nore seniors in the popul ation and
nore that nore would access this programover tinme. He pointed out
that these clients are anong the nost expensive to serve with an
average cost of $10,000 per year. He stated that these participants
typically have Medicare as prinmary insurance, which covers
hospital s and physician expenses but does not include |ong-term
care or prescription drugs. He also infornmed that the state is
required to pay the Medicare premumfor these participants, which
equal s an additional $6 to $7 mllion each year.

Co-Chair Kelly asked what year would have a sharp incline in the
nunber of these participants wth the aging of baby boom
generati on.

M. Labbe <could not give an exact answer, citing incone
requi renents as one reason. He expl ained that people tend to have
hi gher inconmes at the tinme of their retirenent. As people age
further, he said, nursing honme care is nore often necessary. He
al so noted the phase-out of the Longevity Bonus Program woul d al so
result in an increase in the nunber of Medicaid participants.

M. Labbe next told of the disabled Medicaid participants,
referencing another wall chart. He noted this category of
participants includes both children and adults. He stressed that
the programincurs the greatest cost in caring for this group of
participants. He inforned that while many of these participants
qualify and receive Medicare benefits, many others do not. He
descri bed the continual upward growh of the nunber of Medicaid
participants in this group and the expectation that this would not
change. He conpared the increasing costs incurred by participants
in this group.

Co-Chair Kelly chaired the renmai nder of the neeting.

Ms. Clarke detailed the specifics influencing the cost increases,

SFC-01 (23) 02/ 27/ 01



citing another wall chart that shows the nunber of checks issued
each week. She exam ned the "check wites" of FY 00 and FY 01, to
date, indicating that issuances exceeded $10 million six times in
FY 00 conpared to 14 tines in the first half of FY 01l. She assured
that the departnent makes every effort to correctly estimate
upcom ng expenses. However, she stated that $22 nmillion
suppl enental funds were needed for FY 00 and that the baseline was
not adjusted when maki ng projections for FY 01.

Co-Chair Kelly wanted to know the anmbunt requested for these
expenses in the regular operating budget versus the anount the
| egi sl ature appropri at ed.

Ms. Clarke replied that the legislature appropriated the full
anount requested but that that figure was based on the | owest case
scenari o.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the governor's budget request historically
used a | ow case scenari o.

Ms. Clarke replied that this had not been necessary in the past
because of the anobunt of federal funds received except during the
early 1990s when the program had a significant increase.

Ms. Clarke continued explaining the supplenental request is a
conbi nation of the funding in the original budget based on a | ow
case scenario, costs that went above the projections and the
continuing increase of weekly expenditures.

Senator G een requested additional information about Planned
Parent hood et al versus the State of Al aska relating to Medicaid
funding for abortion services. She stated that the court ordered
the departnment to fund these services and gave it perm ssion to
reall ocate funds to do so. She asked where this noney was
originally appropriated.

Ms. Clarke offered for the attorney who argued this case on behal f
of the state to speak to the Commttee about the |[egal
technicalities. She summarized that the court ruled that the funds
were to be taken fromw thin the Medicaid program

Co-Chair Kelly asked if general funds directed by the |egislature
to be used as matching funds to receive federal funds, were used to
cover the abortion services expenses.

Ms. Clarke affirned.

Co-Chair Kelly gave a history of the situation saying the

SFC-01 (24) 02/ 27/ 01



| egi sl ature attenpted to renove public funding of abortions from
budget s because abortion is a divisive issue. However, he stated,
the court ruled this was not perm ssible under the fornmer Ceneral
Relief Medical program He infornmed that the judge in this case
stipulated that any tine public funds are spent for other pregnancy
related services, noney nust also be available for abortion
services. In response, he said, the legislature created a new
program "followi ng the court's directive" using funds that are not
for pregnancy related services. He continued that as a result of
this, the court held the comm ssioner held in contenpt of court for
followng the legislature's directive. He asserted this is a
separation of powers issue independent of the pro-life/pro-choice
argunents. He said this is because the judge ruled that the
| egi sl ative power to appropriate noney is no |onger valid.

Ms. Clarke pointed out that the judge never actually found the
comm ssioner in contenpt of «court but instead ordered the
departnment to pay for the abortion services. She stated that the
rest of Co-Chair Kelly's statenment is accurate.

Co-Chair Kelly understood the departnent is unconfortable conplying
with the judge's order because of the separation of powers issue.

Ms. Clarke agreed and told of the efforts undertaken in support of
the legislature's action. She renmarked that although the departnent
does not necessarily agree with the |legislative decision, the
departnment "believed" it was carrying out the |egislative
directive.

Co-Chair Kelly requested the attorney address the issue before the
Commttee. Co-Chair Kelly opined, "Judge Sen Tan is just one step
away fromsitting at the head of this table and appropriating noney
for the Ilegislature because he has conpletely crossed the
separation of powers.” He warned, "I think we’'re going to have a
bi g debate over this if we don't find a way to cure it." He hoped
the departnent would assist the legislature in this effort.

Senat or Green spoke to her frustration that the state should be
able to inpose simlar restrictions as the federal governnent does
in prohibiting federal Medicaid funds to be used to pay for certain
abortion services under the Hyde Anendnent. She stressed that
general funds allocated to be used, as matching funds for federal
Medi cai d funding, should not be reall ocated.

Ms. Carke noted this was one of the argunents the departnent nade
to the court.

Ms. Clarke referenced another wall chart that showed the anobunt

SFC-01 (25) 02/ 27/ 01



paid out to date for abortion services and the projected anount
needed for the remai nder of the fiscal year. She listed the total
amount as $217, 300.

#
ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10:59 AM

SFC-01 (26) 02/ 27/ 01



